
The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (December 17, 2012) Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
DECEMBER 17, 2012 

7:00 P.M. MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

 
 
 

Mission Statement 
 

The City of Newberg serves its citizens, promotes safety, and maintains a healthy community. 
 

Vision Statement 
 

Newberg will cultivate a healthy, safe environment where citizens can work, play and grow in a friendly, 
dynamic and diverse community valuing partnerships and opportunity. 

 
 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(30 minutes maximum, which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion, with an opportunity to speak 
for no more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 

 
VI. COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
 

1. Consider appointing Rick Rogers and Thomas Barnes to the Newberg Urban Area Management 
Commission serving terms expiring December 31, 2015. (P. 3)

 
2. Consider appointing Gary Bliss and Jason Dale to the Newberg Planning Commission serving 

terms expiring December 31, 2015. (P. 5)
 
3. Consider appointing Ronald Johns, Jay (Greg) Martin, and Suzanne Stich to the Traffic Safety 

Commission serving terms expiring December 31, 2015. (P. 7)
 
VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3025 accepting the canvass of votes for the 
November 6, 2012, Biennial General Election. (Pgs. 9-16)

Page 1



The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (December 17, 2012) Page 2 of 2 

 
2. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3027 approving funds for a contract 

administrator position for the new animal shelter facility. (Pgs. 17-18)
 
3. Consider a motion approving the October 1, 2012, November 5, 2012, and November 19, 2012, 

City Council meeting minutes. (Pgs. 19-30)
 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

Consider a motion adopting Ordinance No. 2012-2757 adopting a new nonexclusive cable 
system franchise with Comcast of Oregon II, Inc. (Pgs. 31-46)
(Legislative Hearing) 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3026 accepting the 2011-2012 Fiscal Year 
Budget Audit. (Pgs. 47-75)

 
2. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3020 considering the formation of the College 

Street Local Improvement District and directing staff to prepare an engineer’s report. (Pgs. 77-79)
 

IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 
Recorder’s Office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 
48 business hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the City Recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services please 
dial 711. 
 
 
 
Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to speak on prior to the 
agenda item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder. The exception is land use hearings, which requires a specific public 
hearing process.  The City Council asks written testimony be submitted to the City Recorder before 4:30 p.m. on the preceding 
Wednesday.  Written testimony submitted after that will be brought before the Council on the night of the meeting for consideration 
and a vote to accept or not accept it into the record. 

 

Page 2



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: December 17, 2012 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 
No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Appoint Rick Rogers as the Newberg 
Citizen Advisory Committee representative and 
ratify the Planning Commission’s (PC) appointment 
of Thomas Barnes as the PC’s representative to the 
Newberg Urban Area Management Commission. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Mayor Bob Andrews 
Dept.: Administration 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
To consent to the appointment, by the Mayor, of Rick Rogers as the Newberg Citizen Advisory Committee 
(NCAC) representative and ratify the Planning Commission’s (PC) appointment of Thomas Barnes as the 
PC’s representative to the Newberg Urban Area Management Commission (NUAMC) for two positions with 
terms expiring December 31, 2015. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The NUAMC is a seven member commission.  It consists of three members appointed by the City Council, 
three appointed by the Yamhill County Board of Commissioners, and one at large position appointed by 
NUAMC, which is ratified by the two governing bodies.  We currently have the below positions with terms 
expiring December 31, 2012, needing to be filled: 
 
Planning Commission Representative: 
 
The Planning Commission met on Thursday, November 8, 2012, and recommends Thomas Barnes as the PC 
representative.  The Mayor concurs with this recommendation. 
 
Citizen Advisory Committee Representative: 
 
Public notice for this position was posted in City buildings, advertised in the local paper, and posted on the 
City’s website.  One application was received prior to the deadline of 4:30 p.m. on Monday, November 5, 
2012.  The Mayor has decided to appoint Rick Rogers to the NUAMC as the NCAC representative. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:   
 
The NUAMC serves a very important role in the betterment of our community.  NUAMC will be asked to 
consider a number of important legislative and quasi-judicial matters in the future. 

Page 3



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 4



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: December 17, 2012 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 
No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Appoint Gary Bliss and Jason Dale to 
the City of Newberg Planning Commission. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Mayor Bob Andrews 
Dept.: Administration 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
To consent to the appointment, by the Mayor, of Gary Bliss and Jason Dale to the Planning Commission for 
two positions with terms expiring December 31, 2015. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The Newberg Planning Commission is a seven member committee that has two positions with terms expiring 
December 31, 2012.  Public notice of this vacancy was posted in City buildings, advertised in the local paper, 
and posted on the City’s website.  Three applications were received prior to the final deadline of 4:30 p.m., 
Monday, November 5, 2012.  All applications were considered and the Mayor has selected Gary Bliss and 
Jason Dale to fill the positions. 
 
For privacy purposes, the original applications are retained in the City Recorder’s Office.  Please call (503) 
537-1283 to request a copy. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None. 
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:   
 
The Newberg Planning Commission serves a very important role in the betterment of our community and 
downtown making our City government viable and a great place to grow. 
 

Page 5



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 6



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: December 17, 2012 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 
No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Appoint Ronald Johns, Jay (Greg) 
Martin, and Suzanne Stich to the City of Newberg 
Traffic Safety Commission. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Mayor Bob Andrews 
Dept.: Administration 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
To consent to the appointment, by the Mayor, of Ronald Johns, Jay (Greg) Martin, and Suzanne Stich for 
three positions on the Newberg Traffic Safety Commission for new terms expiring December 31, 2015. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The Newberg Traffic Safety Commission is a 10 member committee that has three positions with terms 
expiring December 31, 2012.  Public notice of this vacancy was posted in City buildings, advertised in the 
local paper, and posted on the City’s website.  Seven applications were received prior to the final deadline of 
4:3 p.m., Monday, November 5, 2012.  All applications were considered and the Mayor has selected Ronald 
Johns, Jay (Greg) Martin, and Suzanne Stich to fill the positions. 
 
For privacy purposes, the original applications are retained in the City Recorder’s Office.  Please call (503) 
537-1283 to request a copy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:   
 
The Traffic Safety Commission provides a valuable service to the City of Newberg by promoting traffic safety 
through investigation, study and analysis of traffic safety programs; conducting educational efforts among the 
public in the matters of public safety; considering all traffic safety programs which are referred to them for 
recommendation by the City Council and making reports to the City Council on matters of traffic safety and 
traffic safety programs.  The Traffic Safety Commission makes decisions regarding parking, crosswalks, 
safety zones, traffic lanes, truck routes and all manner of traffic control devices within the community. 

Page 7



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 8



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3025 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: December 17, 2012 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2012-3025 

SUBJECT:  Canvass of Votes for the November 6, 
2012, Biennial General Election. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Dawn Wilson 
Dept.: City Attorney’s Office 
File No.:  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2012-3025 accepting the canvass of votes for the November 6, 2012, Biennial General 
Election.   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
At the November 6, 2012, Biennial General Election, the City had placed on the ballot before the voters of 
the City the following items: 
 

MUNICIPAL OFFICES   PERSON 
 Council Position – District 1 Lesley Woodruff* 
 Council Position – District 3 Spencer Haley*   
 Council Position – District 5  Mike Corey* 

 
   * Won the election 
 
  MEASURE 
  Annexation: 

 Annexation of two parcels under one acre each into Newberg – 1.36 acres – (Measure No. 36-157) 
PASSED 

 
On November 28, 2012, the City received from Rebekah Stern Doll, County Clerk of Yamhill County, a 
Certificate certifying the true, actual, and final results (Canvass Report) of the November 6, 2012, Biennial 
General Election.   
 
In accordance with the Newberg Municipal Code and State law, the City should accept the results as 
presented by the County Clerk.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The annexation will add new property to the City’s tax rolls. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
There were no election violations. All deadlines and requirements were met in a timely manner by the City’s 
elections officer.  The annexation passed and the property was zoned as Community Commercial. The 
property met the land use criteria for annexation. 

Page 9



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3025 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3025 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE CANVASS OF VOTES (CANVASS 
REPORT) FOR THE NOVEMBER 6, 2012, BIENNIAL GENERAL 
ELECTION AS PROVIDED BY YAMHILL COUNTY CLERK REBEKAH 
STERN DOLL FOR THREE (3) CITY COUNCILOR POSITIONS AND ONE 
MEASURE (ANNEXATION) – MEASURE 36-157      

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. At the November 6, 2012, Biennial General Election, the City had placed on the ballot before the 

voters of the City the following items: 
 

MUNICIPAL OFFICES   PERSON 
 Council Position – District 1 Lesley Woodruff* 
 Council Position – District 3 Spencer Haley*   
 Council Position – District 5  Mike Corey* 

 
   * Won the election 
 
  MEASURE 
  Annexation: 

 Annexation of two parcels under one acre each into Newberg – 1.36 acres – 
(Measure No. 36-157)  

    
2. On November 28, 2012, the City received from Rebekah Stern Doll, County Clerk of Yamhill 

County, a Certificate certifying the true, actual, and final results (Canvass Report) of the November 6, 
2012, Biennial General Election.   

  
3. In accordance with the Newberg Municipal Code and State law, the City should accept the results as 

presented by the county clerk. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The City accepts the Canvass Report of the Yamhill County Clerk certifying the true, actual, and final 

results (canvass of votes) for the November 6, 2012, Biennial General Election.  A copy of the 
Certificate of Posting and Canvass Report showing the final results is attached as Exhibit “A,” which 
is hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

 
2. Based upon these results, the City declares the following persons elected to City Council Offices and 

the following measure to have passed. 
 

 Council Position – District 1 Lesley Woodruff* 
 Council Position – District 3 Spencer Haley*   

Page 10



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3025 PAGE 2 

 
 

 Council Position – District 5  Mike Corey* 
 
   * Won the election 
 
  MEASURE 
  Annexation: 

 Annexation of two parcels under one acre each into Newberg – 1.36 acres – 
(Measure No. 36-157)  PASSED  

  
3. The unofficial Yamhill County election results were obtained from the Internet and posted on 

November 6, 2012.  A Certificate of Posting is hereby attached as Exhibit “B”, which is hereby 
adopted and by this reference incorporated. 
 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: December 18, 2012. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 17th day of December, 2012. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of December, 2012. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 11



Exhibit "A" 
to Resolution No. 2012-3025 
(total pages: 4)

Page 12



Exhibit "A" 
to Resolution No. 2012-3025 
(total pages: 4)

Page 13



Exhibit "A" 
to Resolution No. 2012-3025 
(total pages: 4)

Page 14



Exhibit "A" 
to Resolution No. 2012-3025 
(total pages: 4)

Page 15



               Exhibit "B" 
 to Resolution No. 2012-3025 
               (total pages: 1)

Page 16



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3027 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: December 17, 2012 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2012-3027 

SUBJECT:  To approve funds for a contract 
Administrator position for the new animal shelter 
facility for fiscal year 2012-2013. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Dan Danicic, City Manager 
Dept.: Administration 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2012-3027 approving funds for a contract administrator position for the new animal 
shelter facility. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
In 2000, the Newberg Animal Shelter Friends (NASF) began raising funds for the construction of a new 
animal shelter facility.  Over the course of 12 years and with help from the City, sufficient funds have been 
contributed to build a shell for the new animal shelter facility.  The shell has been completed and should be 
ready for occupancy by the end of December. 
 
The City will be going from a very minimal animal shelter facility to a much larger facility, and with it, the 
need for dedicated administration and fund raising to enable NASF and the City to fulfill their vision.   
 
Due to the demand to provide a higher quality facility, provide a variety of animal services, and the goal to 
make operating the facility more self-sustaining, the City believes we should provide initial funds to contract 
an animal shelter administrator.  The proposed administrator would be responsible for the oversight of the 
volunteer program, including animal control, raise funds to pay for their position, and provide the opportunity 
for the shelter to become self-sustaining.  Contracting for these services provides the City flexibility to 
terminate the services if they are deemed to be inadequate. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The finance director estimates the fiscal impact for fiscal year 2012-2013 will be $45,000.00.  Funds will need 
to be transferred from General Fund Contingency to the Animal Control department code. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
The City needs a professional administrator to manage the new Animal Shelter Facility to provide a higher 
quality facility, provide a variety of animal services, and work toward the goal of making facility operations 
more self-sustaining.  This person will also focus on raising funds in order to reduce the financial burden on 
the City.   
 
 

Page 17



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3027 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3027 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ALLOCATION OF FUNDS FOR THE 
POSITION OF A CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR FOR THE NEW ANIMAL 
SHELTER FACILITY 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The City currently has an undersized and structurally deficient animal shelter facility.  

 
2. Newberg Animal Shelter Friends, and the City, have built a much larger animal shelter facility.  This 

will require more funds to operate and expertise to manage the facility. 
 
3. The need to have a full-time administrator to manage the facility and to raise funds is necessary in 

order for the facility to become self-sustaining.  
 

4. Funds will need to be transferred from General Fund Contingency to provide the initial funds to 
create the new position for the rest of this fiscal year. 
 

5. It is intended to budget for this position in the 2013-2014 budget year. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 The Council delegates, authorizes, and directs the finance director to transfer $45,000.00 from 

General Fund Contingency (current balance is $798,947.00) to the Animal Control department code, 
01-2160, in the 2012-2013 Budget. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: December 18, 2012. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 17th day of December, 2012. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of December, 2012. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

Page 18



City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: December 17, 2012 

Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 
SUBJECT:    Approve the October 1, 2012, 
November 5, 2012, and the November 19, 2012, City 
Council Meeting minutes. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Norma Alley, City Recorder 
Dept.:  Administration  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Approve City Council minutes for preservation and permanent retention in the City’s historical records. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City of Newberg City Council held a public meeting and minutes were recorded in text.  In accordance to 
Oregon State Records Management law, the City of Newberg must preserve these minutes in hard copy form 
for permanent retention. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
None. 

Page 19



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (October 1, 2012) Page 1 of 3 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
OCTOBER 1, 2012 

7:00 P.M. MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

 
A work session was held prior to the meeting.   A presentation was given by Kelly Amador, ODOT, on the 
Newberg-Dundee Bypass Project.  Mayor and Councilors were given a tour of the remodeled Fire station.  All 
Councilors and the Mayor were present; no action was taken and no decisions were made. 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:04 PM. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Mayor Bob Andrews Denise Bacon Ryan Howard 
 Stephen McKinney Bart Rierson Marc Shelton 
 Wade Witherspoon 
 
Staff Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager Terrence Mahr, City Attorney 
 Brian Casey, Police Chief  Norma Alley, City Recorder 
  Nicole Tannler, Minutes Recorder 
 
Others Present:   Robert Soppe, Peter Siderius, Ray Pacini, Philip White, Antoinette Marcel, and James 

Swanson.  
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 

Consider a motion approving a proclamation supporting National Manufacturing Day held on 
October 5, 2012. 

TIME – 7:05 PM 
 
MOTION: Shelton/McKinney approving a proclamation supporting National Manufacturing Day held on 
October 5, 2012.  Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 
V. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Daniel Danicic, City Manager, reported he just attended the League of Oregon Cites Conference and 
several topics included state and local governments working better together and what other cities are doing in 
this tough budget time.  Newberg won the Gold Award from CIS Insurance Company for a low workplace 
injury frequency rate of 1.3%, which helps lower our insurance rates. 
 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
TIME – 7:11 PM 
 
Mr. Robert Soppe stated there is an issue having to do with approval requirements for non-public portable signs 
within the public right-of-way found in Newberg Municipal Code 15.435.110. He stated that it seems 

Page 20



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (October 1, 2012) Page 2 of 3 

appropriate to require approval by the property owner for anyone to put a sign in front of the property, 
regardless of zone.  Mr. Soppe believes this could be resolved with the change of a single character in the code.  
Mr. Soppe discussed the recent Oktoberfest Festival and the resulting street closures.  The closures traditionally 
have prevented vehicular traffic, but have allowed pedestrians to pass; however, the recent event closed the 
street to vehicles and pedestrians (see official meeting packet for full testimony). 
 
Mr. Peter Siderius, Instructor of Horticulture at Newberg High School, stated he had heard the city may be 
privatizing landscaping and expressed his concerns for future partnership between the City and the horticulture 
program.  He asked the Council to consider a four year relationship and hopes to keep a strong relationship 
growing.  Mr. Danicic responded if the City decides to contract a landscaping service, it is staff’s intent to not 
let the horticulture program die.  There is no guarantee contracting landscaping services is the route the City is 
going; rather, we see this as an opportunity to take a look at options to share with the Budget Committee. 
 
Mr. Ray Pacini stated he was representing the union (AFSME) and does not believe the City is going to get the 
kind of dedication and value received with the previous city employee through contracting for landscaping.  The 
bargaining union encourages consideration of these things.  Mr. Pacini does not think privatization will be as 
safe and could cause liability issues. 
 
Mr. Philip White testified there should be some protection given to animals, so they are not able to be 
euthanized after only two hours.  Mr. White asked what the Council intends to do and stated he accepts there is 
probably an issue with feral cats, but would like to see the Council review current practices.  He shared that his 
cat was picked up at 11:06 a.m. by animal control and euthanized within two hours, as well as being left in a 
van for an hour and half.  Mr. White stated his main objective is to allow 72 hours before drastic measures are 
taken on felines.  Mr. White asked if the animal control officer is qualified to make decisions on euthanizations 
and whether a vet should be called in for those circumstances.  Councilors Howard, Rierson, and Shelton gave 
their condolences, thanked Mr. White for sharing his situation, shared animal welfare is important to the 
Council, and stated they would like to see review of the City’s policy.   
 
Councilor Shelton asked staff if the animal was injured.  Mr. Danicic responded the police report indicates the 
cat was not injured, but did display erratic behavior.  Councilor Shelton asked if there is a typical restraining 
mechanism used for a cat.  Mr. Danicic replied for the safety of the employee there is a restraint used.   
 
Mr. White asked will the new animal shelter have cat facilities.  Mr. Danicic responded the plans for the shelter 
do have a distinct cat play room, a separate room for cat quarantine, and cat kennels.   
 
Ms. Antoinette Marcel, Yamhill County Cat Coalition, stated the goal of her coalition is to reduce the cat 
homelessness problem by spaying and neutering.  She asked the Council to please take a look at what happened 
to Mr. White’s cat.  Any cat that will sit there while being noosed is not a dangerous cat.  The cat was taken to 
animal control, euthanized, and then scanned for a microchip, which defeats the whole purpose of 
microchipping animals to identify them.  There is a pole for microchip scanning to allow an animal control 
officer to scan from a distance or put through cage bars if they believe the cat is dangerous.  She is appalled at 
the lack of professionalism and procedure and asks the Council to take a serious look at the situation.  The 
animal control officer had a dog in the car when the cat was being held in it.  For a cat to act “hissy” is totally 
normal in this case.  Councilor Bacon stated we do not know the details of what actually happened as we were 
not there; there are many things that could have gone wrong.  Ms. Marcel replied it was bad procedure to not 
have waited 24 hours and not scan for a microchip.  
 
Councilor McKinney stated the scan did not return the registered owner and later we were told no ownership 
could be determined.  There needs to be some kind of linkage for microchips from out of the country.  Ms. 
Marcel replied that it was a UK chip, but anyone who went through the effort of putting a microchip in their pet 
would want the cat back. 
 

Page 21



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (October 1, 2012) Page 3 of 3 

Mr. James Swanson stated he believes there is a disconnect in the public policy.  He originally found out about 
this situation through an online news report and has found a collection of comments from readers of the report.  
He provided handouts with particular remarks about the animal control officer (see official meeting packet for 
full testimony). 
 
VII. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
TIME - 8:03 PM 
 
Mr. Dan Danicic stated we all appreciate animals and a lot of facts have been spoken here tonight.  He believes 
Councilor Bacon brought up a good point that only one person saw what actually happened.  The City of 
Newberg does have a practice in place to follow the Oregon Humane Society Policy for dealing with strays, 
which is what the animal control officer did.  The policy reads “stray cats that are housed at humane society 
while there is no legal holding time for cats our policy is to try to honor the 72 hour holding period used for 
dogs this may be shortened or not used at all if the cat is severely injured, un-weaned, sick, or obviously not 
tame”.  Mr. Danicic stated he does appreciate questions posed from Mr. White and would like to hear from 
council on how they would like to proceed.   
 
MOTION: Shelton/Howard approved a motion directing the City Manager and Police Chief to work with 
animal shelter staff and NASF to prepare a Request for Council Action (RCA) with the facts in more detail than 
what we saw in email and return to Council for more discussion.  Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 
Councilor Rierson stated he supported the motion and encouraged the citizens present to work with the Police 
Department on the new animal shelter.  We have a great advocate in the police chief and we are very fortunate 
to have an animal shelter in our city; it is a priority for the council.  Mayor Andrews stated he has heard the 
concerns of the Council and believes it is unfortunate the issue had to come to our attention this way. 
 
VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

1. Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(d) relating to labor negotiations and ORS 
192.660(2)(f) to consider information or records that are exempt by law from public inspection. 

 
2. Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e) relating to a real property transaction. 

 
Mayor Andrews went into executive session at 8:30 PM.  All Council members were present; no action was 
taken and no decisions were made.  Executive Session was closed at 11:00 PM 
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 11:00PM. 

 
ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 1tth day of December, 2012. 

 
 

    ________________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of December, 2012. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 22



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (November 5, 2012) Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

7:00 P.M. MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

 
A work session was held prior to the meeting.  A presentation was given by Maggie Finnerty and Derrick Olsen 
with the Greater Portland Inc. on their recent economic development activities.  All Councilors and the Mayor 
were present; no action was taken and no decisions were made.   
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members 
Present: Mayor Bob Andrews Denise Bacon  Ryan Howard  Stephen McKinney 
 Bart Rierson  Marc Shelton Wade Witherspoon 
Staff 
Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager  Terrence Mahr, City Attorney 
 Jason Wuertz, Project Engineer Norma Alley, City Recorder 
  Paul Chiu, Senior Engineer    Nicole Tannler, Minutes Recorder 
          
Others 
Present: Mary Starrett, Robert Soppe, Peter Siderius, and Casey McWilliams  
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Daniel Danicic, City Manager, reported he has started the recruitment process for the human resources 
manager by advertising on websites and recruitment closes December 3, 2012.  The leaf drop-off program gives 
residents the opportunity to deal with excess leaves on November 18, 2012, from 8:00am-12:00pm and 
December 1, 2012, from 8:00am-5:00pm for free.  American Water alerted Mr. Danicic they will be sending out 
mailers to Newberg residents of their program to insure private water and sewer lines and to direct questions to 
the city although this is not a city related program.  Groundskeeper position received four responses, but Mr. 
Danicic will come to council before any decision is made.   
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Mary Starrett, Newberg resident, testified the sign outside the Public Safety Building stating all weapons 
are prohibited in this building violates state law and signs like this have been removed from many city 
buildings.  Councilor Howard responded he thought police stations and courtrooms were an exception.  Ms. 
Starrett responded a municipal judge can ban handguns from court, but this building is used for other things in 
addition to court.  No county, city, or other municipal authority can make these kinds of rules and regulations.  
Mr. Terry Mahr, city attorney, said the sign was put up by the municipal judge who holds court during the day. 
 
Mr. Peter Siderius acknowledged the city is still moving forward to possibly privatize the groundskeeping job.  
Mr. Siderius would like to continue the relationship the city currently has with the high school, and reminded 

Page 23



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (November 5, 2012) Page 2 of 4 

Council from an economic stand-point the city has a changed face from four years ago.  He urged decision 
makers to take these things into consideration.   
 
Mr. Siderius said it is not about the job, the city has probably benefited $10,000.00 from using the greenhouse 
program because everything is done at cost or through donations.  The students are very important and the 
program is something I am very proud of. 
 
Mr. Casey McWilliams testified he donated a lot of personal time and product to the city through the 
greenhouse program.  With privatizing the job I will no longer be able to do that. 
 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Consider a motion approving the September 17, 2012, City Council meeting minutes. 
 
MOTION:   Shelton/Bacon approving the September 17, 2012, City Council meeting minutes. Motion Carried 
(7 Yes/0 No). 
 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3019 authorizing the city manager to issue a 
task order in the amount of $321,964.00 to the existing CM/GC contract with M.A. Mortenson 
Company for pre-construction services related to the design of the WWTP Headworks, Influent 
Pump Station, and Dewatering System. 

TIME – 7:25 PM 
 
Mr. Jason Wuertz, Project Engineer, presented the staff report including a PowerPoint slideshow (see official 
meeting packet for full report). 
 
Councilor Shelton asked if the costs fall within debt already authorized.  Mr. Wuertz responded it will draw 
from the loan we recently acquired, so the funding is there.   
 
Councilor Howard asked with the approval of this resolution are these all up to the cost parameters.  Mr. Wuertz 
said the pace used for budgeting was conservative so the budgets would be available for construction.  
Councilor Howard inquired if this is work that was contemplated in the master plan.  Mr. Danicic responded 
yes. 
 
MOTION:  Shelton/Rierson adopting Resolution No. 2012-3019 authorizing the city manager to issue a task 
order in the amount of $321,964.00 to the existing CM/GC contract with M.A. Mortenson Company for pre-
construction services related to the design of the WWTP Headworks, Influent Pump Station, and Dewatering 
System.  Motion Carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 

2. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3020 considering the formation of the College 
Street Local Improvement District (LID). 

TIME – 7:51 PM 
 
Mr. Paul Chiu, Senior Engineer, presented the staff report. (see official meeting packet for full report). 
 
Councilor Shelton inquired whether the council has sole discretion and a choice of how we want to assess the 
residents.  Mr. Chiu replied the council has the choice to assess residents according to code, and the opportunity 
to assess cost. 
 

Page 24



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (November 5, 2012) Page 3 of 4 

Councilor Shelton said option one is the only one that runs the risk of being challenged by the public.  Mr. Chiu 
stated staff would like advice and guidance about using the money.  Councilor Shelton asked if we have 
estimated costs for using option one, are there staff costs involved in that, and are there any costs that would be 
incurred by the city for going with option one.  Mr. Danicic responded it is all construction cost, and the 
$194,000.00 is just for construction. 
 
Councilor Shelton asked about the fiscal impact if the council directs staff to use all or a portion.  Terry Mahr, 
city attorney, replied options one and three do not recover cost, but option two does recover cost. 
 
Mr. Robert Soppe stated in evaluating the different scenarios I look at this as the resolution as three questions:  
how much should be paid by the property owners who agreed to Waivers of Remonstrance,  how much should 
be paid by the other property owners within the LID, and who should be paying the remainder, if any. Property 
owners effectively agreed to pay the appropriate allocation to their property of the full LID cost by accepting 
the Waiver when they purchased their property.  While scenario 2 is not as financially attractive to the residents, 
it is still a 29% discount from the full cost.  Their properties will increase in value with the sidewalks.  If system 
development charges (SDCs) are allocated to this project to pay the city’s share, is it fair to make future 
developers pay when they receive no benefit (See official meeting packet for full testimony). 
 
Councilor Shelton asked what the terms of the amount are that we are getting in a grant if we are delayed in a 
challenge by 60% of the property owners.  He asked if we need to finish this in a certain amount of time.  Mr. 
Danicic replied we have funds budgeted of $194,000.00 and with an LID the city pays that amount up front.  
The residents can pay their share right away or have a 10 year loan through the city.  Councilor Howard wanted 
clarification on the billing for getting money from residents.  Mr. Danicic replied the City is acting as the bank 
and at end of the project the city will go to each property owner with a bill.  The property owners will have a 
period of time to tell the city whether they want to pay it or finance it.   
 
Mayor Andrews stated he is a parishioner at Presbyterian Church which may be a conflict of interest, as it is in 
the LID area. 
 
Councilor Shelton said he would like to know what staff recommends.  Mr. Chiu responded he would like 
direction on how much of the $194,000.00 the city should recoup.  He feels scenario one would be the most 
reasonable and logical scenario.  Mayor Andrews asked if having the construction start is contingent on the 
LID.  Mr. Terry Mahr replied we have to establish the LID prior to construction or during the construction.  Mr. 
Danicic stated he would suggest getting it done before construction begins on the next phase.  
 
Councilor Shelton stated with other options the property owners are paying 25% of what they would have had 
to pay with option one.  This is a state highway that has been efficient for the city.  This is a benefit to the city 
much larger than just adding a curb and gutter and it is not fair for just the residents with the waivers of 
remonstrance to pay, all those affected should pay.   
 
Councilor McKinney said as a councilor to give one neighborhood a perk or benefit that other neighborhoods 
do not have does not seem fair.   
 
MOTION:  Shelton/Howard to postpone Resolution No. 2012-3020 to the December 17, 2012 meeting.  
Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 
VIII. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
TIME – 9:38 PM 
 

Page 25



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (November 5, 2012) Page 4 of 4 

Mr. Terry Mahr reminded the Council of the joint meeting on the November 26, 2012.  Mr. Mike Brandt, 
Yamhill County Planning Director, is envisioning a mutual agreement and a joint decision.   
 
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(d) relating to labor negotiations and ORS 
192.660(2)(f) to consider information or records that are exempt by law from public inspection. 

 
Council went into Executive Session at 9:45 PM.  All Council members were present; no action was taken and 
no decisions were made.  Executive Session was closed at 10:20 PM.   
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:20 PM. 

 
ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 17th day of December, 2012. 

 
 

    ________________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of December, 2012. 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  
 
 

Page 26



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (November 19, 2012) Page 1 of 4 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 19, 2012 

7:00 P.M. MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

 
A work session was held prior to the meeting.  A presentation was given by Associate Planner Jessica Nunley 
on the Safe Routes to School Program.  All council members were present with Councilor Howard arriving at 
6:08 PM; no action was taken and no decisions were made. 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:04 PM. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Mayor Bob Andrews Denise Bacon Ryan Howard 
 Stephen McKinney Bart Rierson Marc Shelton 
 Wade Witherspoon 
 
Staff Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager Terrence Mahr, City Attorney 
 Jessica Nunley, Assistant Planner Norma Alley, City Recorder  
 Brian Casey, Chief of Police Mandy Dillman, Minutes Recorder  
 
Others Present: Mike Ragsdale   
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Daniel Danicic, city manager, reported the annual turkey carnival brought in around $2,000.00 in revenue, 
the city lights for Christmas will be put up on Saturday and the library will be hosting their annual tree lighting 
ceremony on Thursday, December 29, 2012.   
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
TIME – 7:08 PM 
 
Mr. Robert Soppe stated his meaning was captured incorrect in the October 1, 2012, meeting minutes.  The 
minutes are currently written as, “He stated it seems appropriate for property owners to receive approval to put 
a sign in front of personal property regardless of zone.”  Mr. Soppe believes his comment would be more 
accurately represented written as “He stated that it seems appropriate to require approval by the property owner 
for anyone to put a sign in front of the property, regardless of zone.”  Secondly, Mr. Soppe commented on the 
incorrect minutes he brought to the Council’s attention at a previous meeting.  He believes the councilors have 
the capability of creating motions that convey their intent, with help from staff when needed, and that once they 
have selected their text for the motion and it has been voted on, that text should not be changed without 
Council’s approval.  Mr. Soppe commented it was inappropriate for staff to make changes without consulting 
with the Council.  Mr. Soppe understands a motion to be a force of law when included with a resolution and 
when changed in the minutes, the motion may not convey the same intent the council had voted on (see official 
meeting packet for full testimony). 
 

Page 27



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (November 19, 2012) Page 2 of 4 

Councilor Bart Rierson said that he does not find it objectionable for minutes recorders to make changes.  He 
mentioned the councilors get to review minutes and make changes before they get finalized. Mr. Soppe replied 
this mistake was factually incorrect with only three of four items included in the motion and the minutes were 
still recorded and approved that way.  He felt the bigger concern was they approved the wording in the meeting, 
but the correct wording did not make it into the minutes.  
 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3021 for the surplus and sale or donation of a 
Fire Engine, a Water Rescue Vehicle, and a Rescue Ambulance and a motion to approve the 
October 1, 2012, City Council meeting minutes as amended.  

 
2. Consider a motion approving the October 1, 2012, City Council meeting minutes. 

TIME – 7:12 PM 
  
The minutes were pulled from Consent Calendar and discussed under Council Business. 
 
MOTION:  Howard/Rierson to approve the Consent Calendar including Resolution No. 2012-3021 for the 
surplus and sale or donation of a Fire Engine, a Water Rescue Vehicle, and a Rescue Ambulance, as amended. 
Motion carried (7 Yes/ 0 No). 

 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3022 supporting the Newberg Downtown 

Coalition’s Transforming Downtown Application. 
TIME – 7:15 PM 
 
Mr. Mike Ragsdale, Newberg downtown coalition (NDC) director, presented the staff report accompanied by a 
PowerPoint presentation (see official meeting packet for full report). 
 
Mr. Danicic asked if this included any obligations of funding or involvement by the council.  Mr. Ragsdale 
replied that they have no financial obligations. 
 
Mr. Witherspoon questioned if the resolution was for them to support the application process and recommended 
language change under the first resolves to change the word “the” to “an”.  Mr. Ragsdale said the resolution is 
for the Council to support NDC to participate in the transformation of downtown and would have no problem 
with that amendment. 
 
Mayor Andrews asked Mr. Ragsdale if he was the “guaranteed local representative” mentioned in the 
application paperwork.  Mr. Ragsdale replied he was.  
 
Mayor Andrews also mentioned that the paperwork talked about guaranteed adequate financial support.  Mr. 
Ragsdale answered that it is not a requirement of the state, but that the city does support them already and no 
more is expected.  
 
NDC recommends approval of Resolution No. 2012-3022.  
 
MOTION:  Rierson/Howard adopting Resolution No. 2012-3022 supporting the Newberg Downtown 
Coalition’s Transforming Downtown Application. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 

Page 28



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (November 19, 2012) Page 3 of 4 

2. Consider a report on policy changes and additions to the Newberg-Dundee Animal Control 
Policy. 

TIME – 7:27 PM 
 
Chief of Police Brian Casey reported on the recent incident of Mr. Phil White’s cat, William, being euthanized 
without his consent or knowledge.  First he thanked Mr. White for his help in changing the animal control 
policies to prevent something like this from happening again.  The new policies to be implemented are no 
animals can be euthanized without notifying the police department first, all animals must be held 72 hours 
beforehand, if it is an emergency and the animal can not be held for 72 hours a veterinarian will be consulted, 
the animal will be scanned for a chip or a license searched, a detailed report will be filled out before all animals 
are euthanized, and new items have been purchased to assist with the new policies. The items purchased are a 
net to help catch cats without alarming them as much as a cat pole does, a scanner with a longer handle to aid in 
finding chips without getting too close to a possibly dangerous animal, and a squeeze cage to help restrain cats 
when searching for chips or sedating them.  With these new policies and equipment Chief Casey feels they are 
off to a good start with animal control issues.   
 
Mr. Phil White spoke about how valuable it has been to work with Chief Casey and how appreciative he is of 
the council’s involvement.  He is sad it was his cat that this happened too, but glad of what has come out of it as 
to prevent it from happening to others.  
 
Councilor Howard thanked Mr. White for coming back to speak again and for helping in the process. He then 
asked Chief Casey how he sees a similar situation playing out with the new polices and equipment in place.  
Chief Casey replied the condition of the cat would determine which tools they use and an animal is now 
guaranteed to be held for 72 hours upon which time someone from police management must give approval 
before euthanizing the animal.  
 
Councilor Howard further inquired as to the distance of the wand to read chips and asked if it could work 
through the cage.  Chief Casey believed the wand would work with the cat enclosed in the squeeze cage, which 
without that device they were unable to get close enough to William to scan him.  
 
Mr. White mentioned there are a number of feral cat colonies in Newberg, which citizens take care of and feed; 
however, they felt in the past they had to hide the cats to prevent them from being picked up and euthanized.  
With these new polices in place they can be assured their cats will not be immediately put to sleep.  
 
Discussion commenced on how the wand can be used for dogs as well, the staff at the animal shelter will 
undergo training for using the new devices as well as other continued education, all animal control devices will 
be used at the animal control officers discretion depending on each individual case, and having several 
veterinarians working with the shelter.  
 
VIII. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider a motion approving the October 1, 2012, City Council meeting minutes. 
TIME – 7:27 PM 
 
MOTION:  Andrews/Rierson to postpone October 1, 2012, City Council meeting minutes to the December 
17, 2012, meeting directing staff to look into Mr. Soppe’s recommended changes.  Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 
Councilor Shelton asked how long records are kept, in accordance to law.  Mrs. Norma Alley, city recorder, 
replied written minutes are kept indefinitely; however, the city of Newberg’s policy is to retain recorded 
minutes for only three years.  The written minutes are the only formally recognized minutes by the State and are 
to be retained permanently.  

Page 29



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (November 19, 2012) Page 4 of 4 

 
Councilor Shelton explained he feels the issue Mr. Soppe brought forward is very important to the 
neighborhood.  The fact that E1, E2, and C2 were the only ones recorded in the minutes being voted on 
discounted those citizens’ needs that are affected by not including E3.  He is concerned if they do not amend 
minutes they will lose that information when the recorded minutes are deleted in three years.  Norma Alley 
stated the April minutes have been amended to include the E3 zone as well as the resolution correctly included 
all zones prior to collection of signatures. 
 
 2. Waste Management Franchise. 
 
MOTION:  Howard/Shelton directing staff to work with Waste Management on presenting council with 
options to move forward in residential glass recycling. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 

3. Introduction of newly elected Councilors. 
 
Each councilor and staff gave a short introduction of themselves to the new councilors.  Mayor Andrews 
thanked them for coming, mentioned they would start orientation on Wednesday, and invited them to attend the 
December Council meetings, the joint meeting on November 26, 2012, and the Local Government Dinner.  Ms. 
Lesley Woodruff said she will be serving District 1 and was looking forward to serving on the council.  She 
shared she was explaining to her children about attending more meetings to make Newberg a better place and 
her five year old suggested they plant more roses in Newberg.  Ms. Woodruff said she might make that her first 
council agenda item.  Mr. Mike Corey said he is representing District 5 and was glad to serve with the other 
councilors and for the city in this way.  He is looking forward to being a part of a formulated government, 
knows it will not always be easy, and is looking forward to all of the thought provoking things he will 
encounter.   
 

4. Other Items 
 
Mr. Terry Mahr reported it has come to their attention that not allowing any weapons, including those carried by 
a person with a concealed hand gun permit, is not in order with the state statue, which states persons with 
concealed hand gun permits may bring weapons into city buildings just not into court rooms.  Technically the 
council meets in a courtroom.  However, court is not in session during council meetings so the rule does not 
apply.  Mr. Mahr mentioned he will speak with the judge to see if he wants to press on the issue of stating the 
Training Room considered as a court room even when court is not in session. The sign outside stating “No 
Weapons” will probably not need to be repainted, however they may need to include a sign inside the building 
that is more specific.  He will check with the judge and chief of police before deciding.  
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:26 PM. 

 
ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 17th day of December, 2012. 

 
 

    ________________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of December, 2012. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 30



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 1 

   

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: December 17, 2012 
Order       Ordinance  XX  Resolution        Motion        Information ___ 
No. No. 2012-2757 No. 
SUBJECT:  A non-exclusive cable system franchise 
with Comcast of Oregon II, Inc. (“Comcast”). 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Dawn Wilson 
Dept.:  City Attorney’s Office 

 
HEARING TYPE:  LEGISLATIVE  QUASI-JUDICIAL  NOT APPLICABLE 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Ordinance No. 2012-2757 repealing Ordinance Nos. 2000-2530 and 
2012-2753, and adopting a new, non-exclusive cable system franchise with Comcast of Oregon II, Inc. 
(“Comcast”). 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The cable TV franchise between the City and Comcast expired June 30, 2012. However, with Comcast’s 
willingness, the City extended it for four (4) months in order to negotiate a new franchise via Ordinance 
No. 2012-2753. Due to unanticipated scheduling delays, Comcast agreed via a letter-agreement to 
extend the franchise through December 31, 2012. 
 
It’s vitally important that a new franchise be adopted so quality services are provided to subscribers and 
the City continues to receive revenue from the franchise fee. No major changes have been made with 
this new contract.  
 
The Cities of Newberg and Dundee have negotiated with Comcast for the same Franchise Agreement. 
The negotiations between the City and Comcast have been extremely friendly, successful, and have 
resulted in a new Franchise Agreement, which comports with the requirements of federal and state laws, 
namely the Federal Communications Commission (FCC).  
 
The main differences in this agreement versus the current agreement are as follows: 
 

• There was a side letter that accompanied the prior agreement. Comcast provided $10,000.00 per 
year to the City for scholarships. This is something Comcast is not continuing. They do not have 
this arrangement in any of their other franchise agreements.   
 

• The customer service section has a requirement for a cable store/office within 15 miles of the 
city. The proposed agreement does not contain this provision.  Comcast will continue to operate 
the cable stores in McMinnville and the one in Beaverton, both of which are within the 15 mile 
radius. 
 

• The customer service section has been condensed to reflect Comcast requirements to provide 
customer service levels as stipulated by the Cable Act versus listing out all of those 
requirements. 

 

Page 31



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 2 

   

• The proposed agreement provides for a technology/franchise review beginning with the third 
anniversary of the agreement, or any subsequent year thereafter, where the City can bring up 
issues related to public, education, and government (PEG) channels, PEG fees, or other issues 
related to the franchise.  This gives the City the ability to plan the development of a PEG 
channel(s) for use in the future.  The current agreement provides for PEG channel(s) and PEG 
fees. The City has not implemented the development of a PEG channel. Comcast is proposing 
this issue is something the City can undertake in the future; if it so chooses. 
 

• The proposed franchise provides for the insertion of the City’s right-of-way and tree 
maintenance ordinances. This is similar to what Dundee has added to its franchise. 
 

• The proposed franchise does not provide for an INet, as is contained in the current agreement, 
but INet never moved forward.  The INets are being phased out throughout our region and being 
replaced by Comcast’s Metro product. 
 

• There are changes to update language and definitions to reflect changes in the cable industry—
much of which is similar to the City’s franchise with Frontier. 
 

• The proposed contract is for a term of ten (10) years as opposed to the current contract with a 
twelve (12) year term. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The City will continue to receive revenue from the 5% franchise fee.  
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:   
 
The new Franchise Agreement contains modern language addressing current practices and processes. 
The franchise has also been condensed for brevity without losing any substantive language. With the 
franchise being renewed, the City may continue to enforce citizen complaints efficiently and effectively 
to ensure that quality service is provided to subscribers. Additionally, the City may continue to collect 
revenue from the franchise fee. 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 1 

   

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NOS. 2000-2530 AND 
2012-2753; AND ADOPTING AND GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE 
CABLE SYSTEM FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WITH COMCAST OF 
OREGON II, INC. (“COMCAST”) FOR CONSTRUCTION AND 
OPERATION OF A CABLE SYSTEM WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF 
NEWBERG  

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The cable TV franchise between the City and Comcast expired June 30, 2012. However, with 

Comcast’s willingness, the City extended it for four (4) months in order to negotiate a new 
franchise via Ordinance No. 2012-2753. Due to unanticipated scheduling delays with Dundee’s, 
Comcast agreed via a letter-agreement to extend the franchise through December 31, 2012. 
 

2. It is vitally important a new franchise be adopted so quality services are provided to subscribers 
and the City continues to receive revenue from the franchise fee. 
 

3. The Cities of Newberg and Dundee have negotiated with Comcast for the same Franchise 
Agreement, and no major changes have been made with this new contract.  
 

4. The negotiations between the City and Comcast have been extremely friendly, successful, and 
have resulted in a new Franchise Agreement, which comports with the requirements of federal 
and state laws, namely the Federal Communications Commission (FCC).  
  

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1 – Title:  
 

This Franchise will be known and be cited as the “Cable System Franchise with Comcast of 
Oregon II, Inc. (Comcast).” 

 
Section 2 – Granting of Franchise: 
 

A) Pursuant to the public interest, the City hereby grants to Comcast a non-exclusive and 
revocable authorization to operate cable system services for cable television within the 
city limits of Newberg. 
 
 
 

B) This authorization is made in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Federal 
Communications Commission (“FCC”), as well as all applicable federal and state laws. 

Page 33



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 2 

   

 
C) The Franchise Agreement is hereby attached as Exhibit “A” and by this reference 

incorporated.  
 

D) The City agrees to the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement with Comcast.  
The City authorizes and directs the City Manager to sign the agreement on behalf of the 
City of Newberg with approval as to legal sufficiency by the City Attorney.  

 
Section 3 – Term of Franchise:  
 

The Franchise is granted for ten (10) years commencing on January 1, 2013, which will expire 
on December 31, 2022. 
 

Section 4 – Emergency Clause:  
 

The Charter states ordinances are effective 30 days after adoption. Due to the negotiations, 
finalization of the Franchise, and the timing of the last Council meeting prior to the current 
Franchise expiring, it’s essential for this Franchise to commence on January 1, 2013, rather than 
January 16, 2013. Therefore, an emergency is hereby declared, and the effective date of this 
ordinance is January 1, 2013. 
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this ordinance is: January 1, 2013. 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 17th day of December, 2012, by 
the following votes:  AYE:   NAY:  ABSENT:    ABSTAIN:          

 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of December, 2012. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 34



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 3 

   

Exhibit “A” 
to Ordinance No. 2012-2757 

(total of 12 pages) 

 
A NONEXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT  

TO PROVIDE CABLE SYSTEM SERVICES (CABLE TV)  
WITHIN THE CITY OF NEWBERG 

 

*     *     * 
 

CABLE SYSTEM FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
FOR CABLE TELEVISION 

 
 This Cable Television System Franchise Agreement (“Franchise”) is entered into this 1st day of 
January, 2013, by and between the CITY OF NEWBERG, OREGON, (“Grantor”), and COMCAST OF 
OREGON II, INC., (“Grantee”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantee is the successor to TCI CABLEVISION OF OREGON, INC. to provide 
services, facilities and equipment necessary for cable related needs of the community; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantor is authorized to grant one or more nonexclusive Franchises to construct, 
operate and maintain a cable television system within the municipal boundaries of the Grantor; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantor has considered the financial conditions, technical ability and legal 
qualifications of Grantee; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantor, after such consideration, analysis and deliberations as are required by 
applicable law, has approved and found sufficient the financial, technical and legal qualifications of 
Grantee to provide cable television service within the Grantor’s boundaries; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantee is willing to accept this Franchise subject to terms and conditions 
herein, and to abide by those terms and conditions; 
 
 WHEREAS, the public has had adequate notice and opportunity to comment on Grantee’s 
application to provide cable television service within the Grantor’s boundaries; 
 
 WHEREAS, in consideration of the mutual promises made herein, and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the Grantor and the Grantee 
do agree as follows: 
 

SECTION 1 
Definition of Terms 

 
1.1  Terms. For the purpose of this Franchise, the following terms, phrases, words, and abbreviations will 
have the meanings ascribed to them below. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present 

Page 35



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 4 

   

tense include the future tense, words in the plural number include the singular number, and words in the singular 
number include the plural number:  
 

A.  "Basic Cable" means any service tier that includes the retransmission of local television broadcast 
signals and any other programming provided by the Grantee.   

 
B.  "Cable Act" means Title VI of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended.  

 
C.  "Cable Service" will mean (1) the one-way transmission to subscribers of (a) video programming, 

or (b) other programming service, and (2) subscriber interaction, if any, which is required for the 
selection or use of such video programming or other programming service.  

 
D.  "Cable System" will mean the Grantee's facility, consisting of a set of closed transmission paths 

and associated signal generation, reception, and control equipment that is designed to provide 
Cable Service which includes video programming and which is provided to multiple Subscribers 
within the Service Area have the meaning specified in the definition of “Cable System” in the 
Cable Act.  

 
E.  "FCC" means Federal Communications Commission, or successor governmental entity thereto.  

 
F.  "Franchising Authority" and “Grantor” means the City of Newberg or the lawful successor, 

transferee, or assignee thereof.  
 

G.  "Grantee" means Comcast of Oregon II, Inc., or the lawful successor, transferee, or assignee 
thereof.  

 
H.  "Gross Revenue" means any revenue derived by the Grantee from the operation of the Cable 

System to provide Cable Services in the Service Area in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP), consistent with federal and state law, provided, however that 
such phrase will not include: (1) any tax, fee, or assessment of general applicability collected by 
the Grantee from Subscribers for pass-through to a government agency, including the FCC user 
fee; (2) unrecovered bad debt; (3) advertising agency commission and launch fees to the extent 
consistent with GAAP; and (4) franchise fees and any Public, Education and Government (PEG) 
amounts received from Subscribers.  Gross Revenues will also not include revenue from any 
other sources or services unless and until such sources or service is finally, specifically and 
expressly declared to be a cable service under federal law or regulation, by Congress or the 
Federal Communication Commission. 

  
I.  "Person" means an individual, partnership, association, joint stock company, trust, corporation, or 

governmental entity.  
 

J.  "Public Way" will have the meaning specified in the definition of “Right-of-Way” in Section 
12.05.300 (Definitions), utility facilities in public Rights-of-Way, of the Newberg Municipal 
Code.   

 
K.  "Service Area" means the legal boundaries of the Franchising Authority, and will include any 

additions thereto by annexation or other legal means, subject to the exceptions in Section 3.9.  
 

L.  "Standard Installation" is defined as 125 feet from the nearest tap to the Subscriber's terminal.  
 

M.  "Subscriber" means a Person who lawfully receives Cable Service of the Cable System with the 
Grantee's express permission.  

 

Page 36



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 5 

   

SECTION 2 
Grant of Franchise 

 
2.1  Grant. The Franchising Authority hereby grants to the Grantee a nonexclusive Franchise which 
authorizes the Grantee to construct and operate a Cable System in, along, among, upon, across, above, over, 
under, or in any manner connected with Public Ways within the Service Area, and for that purpose to erect, 
install, construct, repair, replace, reconstruct, maintain, or retain in, on, over, under, upon, across, or along any 
Public Way such facilities and equipment as may be necessary or appurtenant to the Cable System.  
 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, any easement for such use which has already been granted by the 
Franchising Authority to a telephone or other utility company will to the fullest extent be interpreted so as to grant 
Grantee the same rights and privileges as have been granted to the telephone or other utility company (the “Other 
Grants”), to the extent the grant herein does not violate the terms and conditions of the Other Grants or 
unreasonably interfere with the uses allowed therein.  In such easements, the words “telephone” or “telephone 
company,” “public utility” and the like will to the fullest extent be interpreted to include the Grantee. 
 
2.2  Other Ordinances. The Grantee agrees to comply with the terms of any lawfully adopted generally 
applicable local ordinance, to the extent that the provisions of the ordinance do not have the effect of limiting the 
benefits or expanding the obligations of the Grantee that are granted by this Franchise. Neither the Franchising 
Authority nor the Grantee may unilaterally alter the material rights and obligations set forth in this Franchise.  In 
the event of a conflict between any ordinance and this Franchise, the Franchise will control, provided however 
that the Grantee agrees that it is subject to the lawful exercise of the police power of the Franchising Authority. 
 
2.3       Competitive Equity.   
 

(A)  The Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the Franchising Authority reserves the right to grant one 
(1) or more additional franchises or other similar lawful organizations to provide Cable Services within the 
Service Area; provided, the Franchising Authority agrees that, within ninety (90) days of the Grantee’s request, it 
will amend this Franchise to include any material terms or conditions that it makes to the new entrant, or provide 
relief from existing material terms or conditions, so as to ensure that the regulatory and financial burdens on each 
entity are materially equivalent.  “Material terms and conditions” include, but are not limited to: franchise fees; 
insurance; system build-out requirements; security instruments; customer service standards; required reports and 
related record keeping; and notice and opportunity to cure breaches.  The parties agree that this provision will not 
require a word for word identical franchise or authorization for competitive entry, so long as the regulatory and 
financial burdens on each entity are materially equivalent.  Video programming services delivered over wireless 
broadband networks are specifically exempted from the requirements of this section. 

 
(B)  Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, at any time that a non-wireless facilities based entity, 

legally authorized by state or federal law, makes available for purchase by Subscribers or customers, Cable 
Services or multiple Channels of Video Programming within the Service Area without a franchise or other similar 
lawful authorization granted by the Franchising Authority, then Grantee may seek modification as per (A) above, 
or the term of the Grantee’s Franchise will, upon ninety (90) days written notice from Grantee, be shortened so 
that the Franchise will be deemed to expire on a date six (6) months from the first day of the month following the 
date of Grantee’s notice. 

 
2.4  Term. The Franchise granted hereunder will be for an initial term of ten (10) years commencing on the 
effective date of the Franchise as set forth in Section 8.6, unless otherwise lawfully terminated in accordance with 
the terms of this Franchise.  
  
2.5  Technological Development Review. Within sixty (60) days of the third anniversary or one of the 
subsequent anniversaries of the effective date of this Franchise, the Franchising Authority may, but is not required 
to, conduct a limited review of the Franchise. The purpose of the review will be to ensure, with the benefit of full 
opportunity for public comment, that the Grantee continues to effectively serve the public in light of new 

Page 37



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 6 

   

developments in cable technology together with related developments in cable law and regulation, and community 
needs and interests—including public, education and government access, and  consideration of all financial, 
technological, and operational impacts that may affect the Grantee.  Both the Franchising Authority and Grantee 
agree to make a full and good faith effort to participate in the review.  
 

If, after completion of the review, the Franchising Authority and Grantee agree that the public interest 
will be served by modifying certain franchise obligations and/or extending the term of the Franchise, the 
Franchising Authority, with the express written agreement of the Grantee, will modify the obligations and extend 
the term of the Franchise accordingly.  
 

SECTION 3 
Standards of Service 

 
3.1  Conditions of Occupancy. The Cable System installed by the Grantee is subject to the terms and 
conditions of Section 12.05.300, utility facilities in public Rights-of-Way, of the Newberg Municipal Code 
(“Section 12.05.300”) for the use of the Public Ways.  The Cable System installed by the Grantee pursuant to the 
terms hereof will be constructed, erected, located, maintained, repaired, replaced, or upgraded pursuant to Section 
12.05.300 so as to cause a minimum of interference with the proper use of Public Ways and with the rights and 
reasonable convenience of property owners who own property that adjoins any such Public Ways.  Section 
12.05.300 will govern any conflict with Franchise terms herein for use of Public Ways.  Notwithstanding section 
3.1, Newberg Municipal Code section 12.05.300 will only apply to Grantee’s Cable Service as defined in this 
agreement, which is not subject to the privilege tax.  
 
3.2  Restoration of Public Ways. If during the course of the Grantee's construction, operation, or 
maintenance of the Cable System there occurs a disturbance of any Public Way by the Grantee, Grantee will 
replace and restore such Public Way to a condition reasonably comparable to the condition of the Public Way 
existing immediately prior to such disturbance. In the event Grantee fails to restore the Public Way to a condition 
reasonably comparable to the condition existing immediately prior to such disturbance, the Franchising Authority 
may restore or cause to restore such Public Way at the expense  
of Grantee; provided, that the Franchising Authority provides Grantee with reasonable notice to restore, and 
Grantee fails to restore such Public Way within the time period given by the Franchising Authority.  
 
3.3  Relocation at Request of the Franchising Authority. Upon its receipt of reasonable advance written 
notice, to be not less than five (5) business days, the Grantee, at its own expense, will protect, support, 
temporarily disconnect, relocate in or remove from the Public Way, any property of the Grantee when lawfully 
required by the Franchising Authority by reason of traffic conditions, public safety, street abandonment, freeway 
and street construction, change or establishment of street grade, installation of sewers, drains, gas or water pipes, 
or any other type of structures or improvements by the Franchising Authority which are not used to compete with 
the Grantee's services. The Grantee will in all cases have the right of abandonment of its property.  
 
3.4  Relocation for a Third Party. The Grantee will, on the request of any Person holding a lawful permit 
issued by the Franchising Authority, protect, support, raise, lower, temporarily disconnect, relocate in or remove 
from the Public Way as necessary any property of Grantee, provided: (A) the expense of such paid by the Person 
benefiting from the relocation, including, if required by the Grantee, making such payment in advance; and (B) 
the Grantee is given reasonable advance written notice to prepare for such changes. For purposes of this Section 
3.4, "reasonable advance written notice" will be no less than ten (10) business days in the event of a temporary 
relocation, and no less than 120 days for a permanent relocation.  
 
3.5  Trimming of Trees and Shrubbery. The Grantee will have the authority to trim trees or other natural 
growth within the Public Ways in order to access and maintain the Cable System.  
 
3.6  Safety Requirements. Construction, operation, and maintenance of the Cable System will be performed 
in an orderly and workmanlike manner. All such work will be performed in substantial accordance with generally 

Page 38



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 7 

   

applicable federal, state, and local regulations and the National Electric Safety Code. The Cable System will not 
endanger or unreasonably interfere with the safety of Persons or  
property in the Service Area.  
 
3.7  Underground Construction. In those areas of the Service Area where all of the transmission or 
distribution facilities of the respective public utilities providing telephone communications and electric services 
are underground, the Grantee likewise will construct, operate, and maintain its Cable System underground. The 
Franchising Authority will not incur any cost or expense in the event Grantee is lawfully required by the 
Franchising Authority to place its distribution facilities underground as provided in this Section 3.7. Nothing 
contained in this Section 3.7 will require the Grantee to construct, operate, and maintain underground any ground-
mounted appurtenances.  
 
3.8  Access to Open Trenches. The Franchising Authority agrees to include the Grantee in the platting 
process for any new subdivision. At a minimum, the Franchising Authority agrees to require as a condition of 
issuing a permit for open trenching to any utility or developer that (A) the utility or developer give the Grantee at 
least ten (10) days advance written notice of the availability of the open trench, and (B) that the utility or 
developer provide Grantee with reasonable access to the open trench. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Grantee will not be required to utilize any open trench.  
 
3.9 Required Extensions of the Cable System. Grantee agrees to provide Cable Service to all residents in 
the Service Area subject to the density requirements specified in this Section 3.9. Whenever the Grantee receives 
a request for Cable Service from a Subscriber in a contiguous unserved area where there are at least 12 residences 
within 1320 cable-bearing strand feet (one-quarter cable mile) from the portion of Grantee's trunk or distribution 
cable which is to be extended, it will extend its Cable System to such Subscriber at no cost to said Subscriber for 
the Cable System extension, other than the published Standard/non-Standard Installation fees charged to all 
Subscribers. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Grantee will have the right, but not the obligation, to extend the 
Cable System into any portion of the Service Area where another operator is providing Cable Service, into any 
annexed area which is not contiguous to the present Service Area of the Grantee, or into any area which is 
financially or technically infeasible due to extraordinary circumstances, such as a runway or freeway crossing.  
 
3.10  Subscriber Charges for Extensions of the Cable System. No Subscriber will be refused service 
arbitrarily. However, if an area does not meet the density requirements of Section 3.9 above, the 
Grantee will only be required to extend the Cable System to Subscriber(s) in that area if the Subscriber(s) are 
willing to share the capital costs of extending the Cable System. Specifically, the Grantee will contribute a capital 
amount equal to the construction cost per mile, multiplied by a fraction whose numerator equals the actual 
number of residences per1320 cable-bearing strand feet from Grantee’s trunk or distribution cable, and whose 
denominator equals twelve (12). Subscribers who request service hereunder will bear the remaining cost to extend 
the Cable System on a pro rata basis. The Grantee may require that payment of the capital contribution in aid of 
construction borne by such potential Subscribers be paid in advance. Subscribers will also be responsible for any 
Standard/non-Standard Installation charges to extend the Cable System from the tap to the residence.  
 
3.11  Cable Service to Public Buildings. The Grantee, upon request, will provide without charge, a Standard 
Installation and one outlet of Basic Cable and expanded basic service or its equivalent to those administrative 
buildings owned and occupied by the Franchising Authority, fire station, police station, and K-12 public school(s) 
that are within the Service Area and passed by its Cable System; provided, however, those buildings or portions 
of buildings housing or occupied by prison/jail populations will be excluded. Cable Service to the Franchising 
Authority described herein is a voluntary initiative of Grantee and not a requirement under this Franchise. The 
Cable Service provided will not be distributed beyond the originally installed outlet without authorization from 
Grantee. The Cable Service provided will not be used for commercial purposes, and such outlets will not be 
located in areas open to the public. The Franchising Authority will take reasonable precautions to prevent any use 
of the Grantee's Cable System in any manner that results in the inappropriate use thereof or any loss or damage to 
the Cable System.  The Franchising Authority will hold the Grantee harmless from any and all liability or claims 
arising out of the provision and use of Cable Service required by this Section 3.11.  The Grantee will not be 

Page 39



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 8 

   

required to provide an outlet to such buildings where a non-Standard Installation is required, unless the 
Franchising Authority or building owner/occupant agrees to pay the incremental cost of any necessary Cable 
System extension and/or non-Standard Installation. If additional outlets of Basic Cable and expanded basic 
service are provided to such buildings, the building owner/occupant will pay the usual installation and service fees 
associated therewith.  
 
3.12  Emergency Use. In accordance with, and at the time required by, the provisions of FCC Regulations Part 
11, Subpart D, Section 11.51, as such provisions may from time to time be amended, Emergency Alert System 
(“EAS”) activation will be accomplished in compliance with such regulations and consistent with FCC approved 
Oregon State EAS plan and local area EAS plan applicable to Yamhill County.  
 
3.13  Reimbursement of Costs. If funds are available to any Person using the Public Way for the purpose of 
defraying the cost of any of the relocations under Sections 3.3 and 3.4 hereof, the Franchising Authority will 
reimburse Grantee in the same manner in which other Persons affected by the requirement are reimbursed by the 
Franchising Authority. If funds are controlled by another government entity, the Franchising Authority will make 
application for such funds on behalf of Grantee.  
 
3.14  System Standards. The Cable System will meet or exceed all applicable technical and performance 
standards of the FCC. The Grantee will also comply with all applicable testing requirements of the FCC. Upon 
request, Grantee will advise the Franchising Authority of schedules and methods for testing the Cable System 
within the Service Area to determine compliance with the provisions of applicable FCC technical standards. 
Representatives of the Franchising Authority may witness the tests.  
 
Written records of all system tests required to be performed by or for the Grantee will be maintained at Grantee's 
business office, and will be available for inspection during Grantee's normal business hours by the Franchising 
Authority upon written request. Grantee, upon written request of Franchising Authority, will provide a summary 
or complete copy of such test results prepared in accordance with FCC rule.  
 
Whenever it is necessary to shut off or interrupt service for the purpose of making repairs or maintaining the 
Cable System, Grantee will do so at such times as will cause the least amount of inconvenience to Subscribers, 
and unless such interruption is unforeseen and immediately necessary, it will give reasonable notice thereof to 
Subscribers. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Grantee's obligation to provide, replace, construct, 
maintain or operate the Cable System under this Franchise will be excused for any period during which such 
service is prevented or interrupted by causes beyond the control of Grantee including acts of nature, fire, flood, 
unavoidable casualty, extra-ordinary delays in transportation, strikes or power interruption, or regulations. Cable 
Service will thereafter be restored as soon as reasonably possible.  
 
3.15  Customer Service Standards/Complaint Resolution. Grantee will comply with the customer service 
standards set forth in Section 76.309 of the FCC's Rules and Regulations, as may be amended from time to time.  
 

Grantee may arrange for a drop box or its equivalent within the city limits of the Franchising Authority 
where Subscribers may drop or deliver their bill payment for cable service.  
 

Should a Subscriber have an unresolved complaint regarding Cable Service with Grantee, the Subscriber 
may file a complaint with the Franchising Authority and thereafter to meet or discuss jointly with representatives 
of the Franchising Authority and Grantee within 30 days of filing the complaint with the Franchising Authority to 
address and resolve the Subscriber's complaint. For purposes of this paragraph, a "complaint" is a grievance 
related to the Cable Service provided by Grantee within the Service Area that is reasonably remediable by 
Grantee, but does not include grievances regarding the content of programming or information services other than 
broad categories of programming, and does not include customer contacts resulting in routine service calls that 
resolve the subscriber's problem satisfactorily to subscriber.  
 

Page 40



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 9 

   

 3.16  Public, Education, and Government Access. If the Franchising Authority and the Grantee, under 
Section 2.5, agree it is the best interest of the community to provide a local Public Access channel; Within 90 
days of receipt of the written request of the Franchising Authority, Grantee agrees to provide the Franchising 
Authority a public, education, and government ("PEG") access channel to cablecast its local government meetings 
and other noncommercial programming on the Cable System within the Service Area. The Franchising Authority 
agrees to indemnify, save and hold harmless Grantee from and against any and all liability resulting from the use 
of Grantee's channel for PEG access by the Franchising Authority or its designee. 
 

SECTION 4 
Regulation by the Franchising Authority 

 
4.1  Franchise Fee.  

 
A.  The Grantee will pay to the Franchising Authority a franchise fee equal to five percent (5%) of 

annual Gross Revenues (as defined in Section 1.1 of this Franchise). In accordance with the Cable Act, the 12-
month period applicable under the Franchise for the computation of the franchise fee will be a calendar year. The 
franchise fee payment will be due quarterly and payable within forty-five (45) days after the close of the 
preceding calendar quarter. Each payment will be accompanied by a brief report prepared by a representative of 
the Grantee showing the basis for the computation.  
 

B.  Limitation on Franchise Fee Actions. The period of limitation for recovery of any franchise fee 
payable hereunder will be three (3) years from the date on which payment by the Grantee is due.  
 
4.2  Rates and Charges. The Franchising Authority may regulate rates for the provision of Basic Cable and 
equipment as expressly permitted by federal or state law.  
 
4.3  Inspections for Compliance. The Franchising Authority may inspect the Cable System within the 
Service Area, during reasonable times and in a manner that does not unreasonably interfere with the normal 
business operations of Grantee, in order to determine compliance with applicable FCC standards. Except in 
emergency circumstances, such inspections may be undertaken only after giving not less than five (5) days 
advance notice thereof and after giving Grantee an opportunity to be present during such inspections. In the event 
such inspection determines that Grantee's Cable System has substantially failed to comply with applicable FCC 
standards, the reasonable costs of the inspection will be borne by Grantee. In the event such inspection 
demonstrates that Grantee has substantially complied with applicable FCC standards, the cost of the inspection 
will be borne by the Franchising Authority. Except in emergency circumstances, the Franchising Authority agrees 
that such inspection will be undertaken no more than annually, and that the results thereof will be provided to 
Grantee.  
 
4.4  Renewal of Franchise.  

 
A.  The Franchising Authority and the Grantee agree that any proceedings undertaken by the 

Franchising Authority that relate to the renewal of the Grantee's Franchise will be governed by and comply with 
the provisions of Section 626 of the Cable Act.  
 

B.  In addition to the procedures set forth in said Section 626(a), the Franchising Authority agrees to 
notify the Grantee of all of its assessments regarding the identity of future cable-related community needs and 
interests, as well as the past performance of the Grantee under the then current Franchise term. The Franchising 
Authority further agrees that such assessments will be provided to the Grantee promptly so that the Grantee has 
adequate time to submit a proposal under Section 626(b) of the Cable Act and complete renewal of the Franchise 
prior to expiration of its term.  
 

C.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Section 4.4, the Grantee and the 
Franchising Authority agree that at any time during the term of the then current Franchise, while affording the 

Page 41



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 10 

   

public appropriate notice and opportunity to comment, the Franchising Authority and the Grantee may agree to 
undertake and finalize informal negotiations regarding renewal of the then current Franchise and the Franchising 
Authority may grant a renewal thereof.  

 
D.  The Grantee and the Franchising Authority consider the terms set forth in this Section 4.4 to be 

consistent with the express provisions of Section 626 of the Cable Act.  
 
 
4.5  Transfer of Franchise. The Grantee's right, title, or interest in the Franchise will not be sold, transferred, 
assigned, or otherwise encumbered, other than to an entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control 
with the Grantee, without the prior consent of the Franchising Authority, such consent not to be unreasonably 
withheld. No such consent will be required, however, for a transfer in trust, by mortgage, by other hypothecation, 
or by assignment of any rights, title, or interest of the Grantee in the Franchise or Cable System in order to secure 
indebtedness, and for change in control to Grantee’s parent company or an entity controlling, controlled by, or 
under common control with Grantee.  Within thirty (30) days of receiving a request for transfer, the Franchising 
Authority will notify the Grantee in writing of any additional information it reasonably requires to determine the 
legal, financial and technical qualifications of the transferee.  Consent by the Franchising Authority will be 
deemed given if the Franchising Authority has not taken action on the Grantee's request for transfer within one 
hundred twenty (120) days after receiving such request, unless the requesting party and the Franchising Authority 
agree to an extension of time.  
 

SECTION 5 
Books, Records, and Maps 

 
5.1  Books and Records. The Grantee agrees that the Franchising Authority, upon thirty (30) days written 
notice to the Grantee, may review such of its books and records at the Grantee's business office, during normal 
business hours and on a non-disruptive basis, as is reasonably necessary to ensure compliance with the terms of 
this Franchise. Such notice will specifically reference the section of the Franchise which is under review, so that 
the Grantee may organize the necessary books and records for easy access by the Franchising Authority. 
Alternatively, if the books and records are not easily accessible at the local office of the Grantee, Grantee may, at 
its sole option, choose to pay the reasonable travel costs of the Franchising  Authority’s representative to view the 
books and records at the appropriate location or to provide the Franchising Authority  to view certain books and 
records in electronic format. The Grantee will not be required to maintain any books and records for Franchise 
compliance purposes longer than three (3) years. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, the 
Grantee will not be required to disclose information which it reasonably deems to be proprietary or confidential in 
nature, nor disclose books and records of any affiliate of Grantee which is not providing Cable Service in the 
Service Area. In the event the Grantee asserts that certain information is proprietary or confidential in nature, the 
Grantee will identify generally the information which it deems proprietary or confidential and the reasons for its 
confidentiality in writing.  
 
The Franchising Authority agrees to treat any information disclosed by the Grantee as confidential under 
applicable federal and state law, and only to disclose it to employees, representatives, and agents thereof that have 
a need to know, or in order to enforce the provisions hereof. The Grantee will not be required to provide 
Subscriber information in violation of Section 631 of the Cable Act.  
 
5.2  Maps. Grantee will maintain "as built" drawings for the Cable System at Grantee's business office, and 
make them available to the Franchising Authority for inspection during normal business hours upon written 
request. "As built" drawings will be updated as changes occur in the Cable System serving the Service Area. 
Upon written request of the Franchising Authority, Grantee will provide the Franchising Authority copies of 
strand and trench maps showing the location of Grantee's lines within the Public Ways in the Service Area within 
sixty (60) days of request for the same.  The Franchising Authority recognizes that the information contained in 
such maps is confidential and proprietary, and remains the property of the Grantee.  To the extent provided under 
the Oregon Public Records Law, the Franchising Authority will safeguard such information from the public law.  

Page 42



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 11 

   

 
SECTION 6 

Insurance and Indemnification 
 
6.1  Insurance Requirements. The Grantee will maintain in full force and effect, at its own cost and expense, 
during the term of the Franchise, the following liability policies that protect the Grantee and the Grantor, as well 
as the Grantor’s officers, agents, and employees: 
 
 A.  Comprehensive general liability insurance with limits not less than: 
  i. Two million ($2,000,000) dollars for bodily injury or death to each person; 
  ii. Two million ($2,000,000) dollars for property damage resulting from any one accident; 
and 
  iii. Two million ($2,000,000) dollars for all other types of liability. 
 
 B.  Motor vehicle liability insurance for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles with a limit of one million 
($1,000,000) dollars for each person and two million ($2,000,000) dollars for each accident. 
 
 C.  Workers’ Compensation insurance within statutory limits and employer’s liability with limits of not 
less than $1,000,000. 
 
 D.  The limits of the insurance will be subject to statutory changes as to maximum limits of liability 
imposed on municipalities of the state of Oregon.  The insurance will be without prejudice to coverage otherwise 
existing and will name or cover, or the certificate of insurance will name or cover, as additional insureds the 
Grantor and its officers, agents, and employees.  The coverage must apply as to claims between insureds on the 
policy.  The certificate of insurance will provide that the insurance will not be canceled or materially altered 
without 30 days’ prior written notice first being given to the Grantor.  If the insurance is cancelled or materially 
altered, the Grantee will provide a replacement policy with the terms as outlined in this section.  The Grantee will 
maintain continuous uninterrupted coverage, in the terms and amounts required.  The Grantee may self-insure, or 
keep in force a self-insured retention plus insurance, for any or all of the above coverage. 
 
 E.  The Grantee will maintain on file with the Grantor a certificate of insurance, or proof of self-insurance 
acceptable to the Grantor, certifying the coverage required above. 
 
6.2  Indemnification. The Grantee agrees to indemnify, save and hold harmless, and defend the Franchising 
Authority, its officers, boards and employees, from and against any liability for damages and for any liability or 
claims resulting from property damage or bodily injury (including accidental death), which arise out of Grantee's 
construction, operation, or maintenance of its Cable System, provided that the Franchising Authority will give 
Grantee written notice of its obligation to indemnify the Franchising Authority within ten (10) days of receipt of a 
claim or action pursuant to this Section 6.2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Grantee will not indemnify the 
Franchising Authority for any damages, liability, or claims resulting from the willful misconduct or negligence of 
the Franchising Authority.  
 
6.3  Bonds and Other Surety. No bond or other surety will be required of Grantee at the inception of the 
Franchise. In the event Grantee is required by the Franchising Authority to obtain a bond or other surety in the 
future, the Franchising Authority agrees to give Grantee at least 60 days advance written notice thereof stating the 
specific reasons for such requirement. Such reasons must demonstrate a change in Grantee's legal, financial or 
technical qualifications that would materially prohibit or impair Grantee's ability to comply with the terms and 
conditions of this Franchise.  
 

SECTION 7 
Enforcement and Termination of Franchise 

 

Page 43



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 12 

   

7.1  Notice of Violation. In the event that the Franchising Authority believes that the Grantee has not 
complied with the terms of the Franchise, the Franchising Authority will informally discuss the matter with 
Grantee. If these discussions do not lead to resolution of the problem, the Franchising Authority will notify the 
Grantee in writing of the exact nature of the alleged noncompliance.  
 
7.2  The Grantee's Right to Cure or Respond. The Grantee will have thirty (30) days from receipt of the 
notice described in Section 7.1: (A) to respond to the Franchising Authority, contesting the assertion of 
noncompliance, or (B) to cure such default, or (C) in the event that, by the nature of default such default cannot be 
cured within the thirty (30) day period, initiate reasonable steps to remedy such default and notify the Franchising 
Authority of the steps being taken and the projected date that they will be completed.  
 
7.3  Public Hearing. In the event that the Grantee fails to respond to the notice described in Section 7.1 
pursuant to the procedures set forth in Section 7.2, or in the event that the alleged default is not remedied within 
thirty (30) days or the date projected pursuant to 7.2(C) above, if it intends to continue its investigation into the 
default, then the Franchising Authority will schedule a public hearing. The Franchising Authority will provide the 
Grantee at least ten (10) days prior written notice of such hearing, which specifies the time, place and purpose of 
such hearing, and provide Grantee the opportunity to be heard.  
 
7.4  Enforcement. Subject to applicable federal and state law, in the event the Franchising Authority, after the 
hearing set forth in Section 7.3, determines that the Grantee is in default of any provision of the Franchise, the 
Franchising Authority may:  
 

A.  Seek specific performance of any provision, which reasonably lends itself to such remedy, as an 
alternative to damages; or  

 
B.  Commence an action at law for monetary damages or seek other equitable relief; or  

 
C.  In the case of a substantial default of a material provision of the Franchise, seek to revoke  

 the Franchise in accordance with Section 7.5.  
 
7.5  Revocation. Should the Franchising Authority seek to revoke the Franchise after following the 
procedures set forth in Section 7.1-7.4 above, the Franchising Authority will give written notice to the Grantee of 
its intent.  The notice will set forth the exact nature of the noncompliance. The Grantee will have ninety (90) days 
from such notice to object in writing and to state its reasons for such objection. In the event the Franchising 
Authority has not received a satisfactory response from the Grantee, it may then seek termination of the Franchise 
at a public hearing. The Franchising Authority will cause to be served upon the Grantee, at least thirty (30) days 
prior to such public hearing, a written notice specifying the time and place of such hearing and stating its intent to 
revoke the Franchise.  
 

At the designated hearing, Grantee will be provided a fair opportunity for full participation, including the 
right to be represented by legal counsel, to introduce relevant evidence, to require the production of evidence, to 
compel the relevant officials, agents, employees or consultants of the Franchising Authority, the testimony of 
other persons as permitted by law. A complete record minutes and audio tape will be made of the hearing by the 
Franchising  
 

Following the hearing, the Franchising Authority will determine the franchise will be revoked. If the 
Franchising Authority determines that the franchise will be revoked, Grantee may appeal such determination to an 
appropriate court, which will have the power to review the decision of the Franchising Authority de novo. Grantee 
will be entitled to such relief as the court finds appropriate. Such appeal to the appropriate court must be taken 
within sixty (60) days of the issuance of the determination of the Franchising Authority.  

 
The Franchising Authority may, at its sole discretion, take any lawful action which it deems appropriate 

to enforce the Franchising Authority's rights under the Franchise in lieu of revocation of the Franchise.  

Page 44



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 13 

   

 
7.6  Force Majeure. The Grantee will not be held in default under, or in noncompliance with, the provisions 
of the Franchise, nor suffer any enforcement or penalty relating to noncompliance or default, where such 
noncompliance or alleged defaults occurred or were caused by circumstances reasonably beyond the ability of the 
Grantee to anticipate and control. This provision includes work delays caused by waiting for utility providers to 
service or monitor their utility poles to which the Grantee's Cable System within the Service Area is attached, as 
well as unavailability of materials and/or qualified labor to perform the work necessary.  
 

Furthermore, the parties hereby agree that it is not the Franchising Authority's intention to subject the 
Grantee to penalties, fines, forfeitures or revocation of the Franchise for violations of the Franchise where the 
violation was a good faith error that resulted in no or minimal negative impact on the Subscribers within the 
Service Area, or where strict performance would result in practical difficulties and hardship to the Grantee which 
outweigh the benefit to be derived by the Franchising Authority and/or Subscribers.  
 

SECTION 8 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

 
8.1  Actions of Parties. In any action by the Franchising Authority or the Grantee that is mandated or 
permitted under the terms hereof, such party will act in a reasonable, expeditious, and timely manner. 
Furthermore, in any instance where approval or consent is required under the terms hereof, such approval or 
consent will not be unreasonably withheld.  
 
8.2  Entire Agreement. This Franchise constitutes the entire agreement between the Grantee and the 
Franchising Authority. Amendments to this Franchise will be mutually agreed to in writing by the parties.  
 
8.3  Notice. Unless expressly otherwise agreed between the parties, every notice or response required by this 
Franchise to be served upon the Franchising Authority or the Grantee will be in writing, and will be deemed to 
have been duly given to the required party when placed in a properly sealed and correctly addressed envelope: a) 
upon receipt when hand delivered with receipt/acknowledgment, b) upon receipt when sent certified, registered 
mail, or c) within five (5) business days after having been posted in the regular mail.  
 
The notices or responses to the Franchising Authority will be addressed as follows:  
 

City Manager  
City of Newberg  
P.O. Box 970  
Newberg, OR 97132  

 
Notices or responses to the Grantee will be addressed as follows:  
 

Comcast of Oregon II, Inc. 
Attention: Government Affairs  
9605 SW Nimbus Ave. 
Beaverton, OR  97008 
 

 
With a copy to:  

Comcast of Oregon II, Inc.  
Attention: West Division -Government Affairs  
15815 25th Ave West 
Lynnwood, WA 98087  

 
 

Page 45



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2757 PAGE 14 

   

The Franchising Authority and the Grantee may designate such other address or addresses from time to time by 
giving notice to the other in the manner provided for in this Section.  
 
8.4  Descriptive Headings. The captions to sections contained herein are intended solely to facilitate the 
reading thereof. Such captions will not affect the meaning or interpretation of the text herein.  
 
8.5 Severability.  If any section, sentence, paragraph, term, or provision hereof is determined to be illegal, 
invalid, or unconstitutional, bay any court of competent jurisdiction or by any state or federal regulatory authority 
having jurisdiction thereof, such determination will have no effect on the validity of any other section, sentence, 
paragraph, term or provision hereof, all of which will remain in full force and effect for the term of the Franchise. 
 
8.6  Effective Date. The effective date of this Franchise is January 1, 2013, pursuant to the provisions of 
applicable law. This Franchise will expire on December 31, 2022, unless extended by the mutual agreement of the 
parties.  

*     *     * 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties enter into this Franchise.  Each person signing this 
Franchise represents and warrants that he or she has been duly authorized to enter into this Franchise by 
the Party on whose behalf it is indicated that the person is signing. 

 
COMCAST OF OREGON, II, INC.  CITY OF NEWBERG 
 
By:  

  
By:  

Name:   Name: Daniel Danicic 
Title:   Title: City Manager 
Date: _____________  Date: _____________ 

Approved by Ordinance No. 2012-2757 
  

Approved as to Legal Sufficiency: 
  

Approved as to Legal Sufficiency: 
     
By:   By:  
Name:   Name: Terrence D. Mahr 
Title:   Title: City Attorney 
Date: _____________  Date: _____________ 

 

 

Page 46



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: December 17, 2012 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2012-3026 

SUBJECT:  To accept the annual audit report and 
financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2012. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Janelle Nordyke 
Dept.: Finance 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2012-3026 accepting the annual auditor’s report and financial statements for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2012. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Following the close of each fiscal year, auditors come to the City to review the financial records.  The current 
auditors are Boldt, Carlisle and Smith, LLC of Salem, Oregon, who specialize in performing governmental 
audits.   The audit team was at the City the week of September 24, 2012, conducting field work.  This 
process includes: obtaining an understanding of the City’s internal controls by asking pertinent questions, 
reviewing City Council minutes, critically examining and testing samples of various transactions, and intently 
questioning management and other employees about fraud risks.  Fraud risks include:  untimely bank 
reconciliations, not having separation of duties, and lack of internal controls that could lead to collusion and 
material errors.   
 
On November 16, 2012, the City of Newberg was issued an unqualified opinion on the financial statements 
for the year ending June 30, 2012 (see Attachment 1 for the Independent Auditor’s Report). An unqualified 
opinion means that the financial statements are presented fairly in the auditors’ opinion, are free of material 
misstatements, have been prepared in accordance with the United States generally accepted accounting 
principles, and are consistently applied.  A material misstatement is the presentation of misleading financial 
information, whether caused by error or fraud, which could influence the decision of the intended users.  The 
City received the highest positive opinion an auditor can give. 
 
As Oregon municipal auditors, Boldt, Carlisle & Smith are also required to issue a report that states the City 
of Newberg has substantially complied with the Minimum Standards required for audits of a municipality 
(Attachment 2).  They gave the City one comment on compliance with minimum standards: the General 
Government line item exceeded appropriations in the amount of $3,250.00.  This was due to the unknown 
amount to pay Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce for their portion of the transient lodging tax that was 
received in the last quarter of the fiscal year. 
 
The City of Newberg’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ending June 30, 2012, can be 
found on the City’s website at www.newbergoregon.gov/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-report, 
select CAFR 2012.  For an analysis of the financial results, please read the Transmittal Letter (Attachment 3) 
and Management Discussion and Analysis Report (Attachment 4). 
 

Page 47

http://www.newbergoregon.gov/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-report


 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 2 

The following information briefly summarizes the major sections of the City’s financial statements:   
 

• The Government-Wide Statements of the City are presented on pages 1-4 of the report.  These 
statements show the result of operations for all services of the City on a full accrual basis of 
accounting.  These statements also focus on the long-term health of the City.  The full accrual basis of 
accounting includes reporting long-term liabilities, long-term receivables, depreciation, and the 
capitalization of asset purchases.  The functions of the City are split into two categories:  
Governmental Activities (everything except business-type activities) and Business-Type Activities 
(Water, Wastewater, Stormwater, and Emergency Medical Services). 

 
• The Governmental Fund Statements are presented on pages 5-12.  These statements have a short-

term focus, therefore, only current revenues and current expenses are reported.  This accounting 
method is called the modified accrual approach.  These reports include General Fund, Street Fund, 
Building Inspection Fund and Other Governmental Funds (Special Revenue, General Government 
Debt Service and non-utility Capital Projects). 

 
• The Proprietary Fund Statements are presented on pages 13-16.  These reports show the financial 

results of the utility operations and emergency medical services prepared under the full accrual basis 
of accounting.  The utilities and emergency medical services are considered business-type activities 
due to the collection of user charges to fully recuperate costs.  The Internal Services Funds 
(Administrative Support Services and the Vehicle/Equipment Replacement Reserve) are also included 
in this category as they fully recuperate costs.   

 
• The Fiduciary Funds are presented on pages 17-20.  These reports are intended to disclose the 

employee retirement funds that the City manages in a fiduciary capacity and the City’s court bail 
deposits.  The amounts reported in these funds do not belong to the City, but are held in trust for 
other parties. 

 
• The Notes to the Financial Statements are presented on pages 21-52.  The Notes describe the 

summary of significant accounting policies of the City; stewardship, compliance and accountability of 
the City; detailed notes on all funds, including debt; and other information such as retirement plans 
and property tax limitations.  

 
• The Combining Statements and Budget to Actual Reports are presented on pages 53-110.  The 

purpose of the Budget to Actual reports is to demonstrate how the City complied with budgetary 
restrictions over the course of the fiscal year.  Also included in this section are reconciling statements 
on pages 96-97 and 105.  The purpose of combining and reconciling reports is to document how the 
individual fund statements were consolidated and adjusted to prepare the information for the summary 
reports shown back on pages 1-20. 

 
• Pages 111-152 have additional information about the City’s operations, including pertinent statistical 

facts. 
 

Page 48



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 3 

• Pages 153-164 contain information about the City’s compliance with state and federal accounting and 
auditing requirements.  The City was required to undergo a Single Audit for 2011-12 due to the 
expenditure of over $500,000.00 in federal money.  A Single Audit encompasses an examination of a 
recipient’s financial records, financial statements, federal award transactions and expenditures, the 
general management of its operations, internal control systems, and federal assistance it received 
during the audit period. 

 
A full copy of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report can be found on the City’s website at 
http://www.newbergoregon.gov/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-report or by contacting the Finance 
Director at (503) 537-1216. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
There is no fiscal impact with accepting the annual audit report and financial statements for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2012.   
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
The City of Newberg’s financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2012, have been prepared in 
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles of the United States of America and Oregon 
Local Budget Law.  These statements will be filed with all regulatory agencies that monitor City financial 
activities.

Page 49

http://www.newbergoregon.gov/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-report


Attachment 1 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 4 

Page 50



Attachment 1 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 5 

Page 51



Attachment 2 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 6 

Page 52



Attachment 2 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 7 

Page 53



Attachment 3 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 8 

 
 

Page 54



Attachment 3 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 9 

 

 

Page 55



Attachment 3 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 10 

 

 

Page 56



Attachment 3 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 11 

 

 

Page 57



Attachment 3 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 12 

 

 

Page 58



Attachment 3 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 13 

 

Page 59



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 14 

 
 

Page 60



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 15 

 
 

Page 61



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 16 

 
 

Page 62



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 17 

 
 

Page 63



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 18 

 
 

Page 64



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 19 

 
 

Page 65



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 20 

 
 

Page 66



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 21 

 
 

Page 67



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 22 

 
 

Page 68



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 23 

 
 

Page 69



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 24 

 
 

Page 70



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 25 

 
 

Page 71



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 26 

 
 

Page 72



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 27 

 
 

Page 73



Attachment 4 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 28 

 

Page 74



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3026 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT AND 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR THAT ENDED JUNE 30, 
2012 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The week of September 24, 2012, the auditing firm of Boldt, Carlisle & Smith LLC conducted field 

work to review the City’s financial records of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. 
 

2. On November 16, 2012, Boldt, Carlisle & Smith, LLC issued an unqualified opinion on the City’s 
financial report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. 
 

3. The annual audit report and financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, have been 
submitted to the City Council with this resolution. 
 

4. The City of Newberg’s financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2012, have been prepared in 
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles of the United States of America and 
Oregon Local Budget Law. 

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The Council accepts the annual audit report and financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2012. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: December 18, 2012. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 17th day of December, 2012. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of December, 2012. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

Page 75



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 76



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3020 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: December 17, 2012 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2012-3020 

SUBJECT:  Consider the formation of the College 
Street Local Improvement District and direct staff to 
prepare an engineer’s report. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Paul Chiu, P.E., Senior Engineer 
Dept.: Public Works Department - Engineering 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Adopt Resolution No. 2012-3020 considering the formation of the College Street Local Improvement 
District and directing staff to prepare an engineer’s report. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
The City entered into an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with the Oregon Department of Transportation 
(ODOT) to complete the N. College Street Improvement Project in 2011.  The IGA provides over 
$800,000.00 in Transportation Enhancement (TE) funding through an ODOT grant for right-of-way 
acquisition, survey, design, and construction of curb and gutter, sidewalk, and storm drain on the west side of 
N. College Street (also known as Highway 219), and bicycle lanes on both sides, from Vermillion Street to 
Aldercrest Drive.  The City agreed to provide a grant match and complete a portion of the improvements near 
the Vermillion Street/College Street intersection at the railroad crossing.  The City’s budget for the remaining 
construction project is estimated at $194,197.00. 
 
On June 4, 2012, City Council directed staff to prepare an informational report for a potential College Street 
Local Improvement District (LID) to recoup all or a portion of the City’s costs for the project. On November 
5, 2012, Council reviewed that report and discussed the options presented.  They indicated their preference 
for Scenario #1 to apportion cost to all west side property owners regardless of whether those properties 
have waivers of remonstrance agreements in place.  Council directed staff to present several variations of 
Scenario #1 that would recoup different percentages of the total City’s cost for further consideration in 
December, 2012.   Council also requested staff provide approximate costs for any easements or right-of-way 
acquisitions.  The variations and the other approximate costs are all shown in Exhibit “A”.  The estimated 
construction cost for proposed curbs and sidewalks is approximately $120,000.00, which is around 61% of 
the City’s cost.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Although the bulk of this improvement project is being paid by grant funds, the City will contribute 
approximately $194,197.00 to the project.  Part of the project cost was budgeted and expended in Fiscal Year 
2011-2012 under account number 18-5150-702165.  The remaining project cost is included in the approved 
Fiscal Year 2012-2013 budget under the same account number.   If Council directs staff to proceed with the 
LID, the City could recover all or a portion of these costs. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
This project provides an improved pedestrian and bicyclist connection along a major state and city route 
in accordance with the City’s Transportation System Plan and the Newberg ADA/Pedestrian/Bike Route 
Improvement Plan.  The establishment of an LID will result in the city recouping all of part of the value 
of its grant match, and being able to apply these funds to other projects.  

Page 77



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3020 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-3020 
 
 

A RESOLUTION CONSIDERING THE FORMATION OF THE COLLEGE STREET 
LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND DIRECTING STAFF TO PREPARE AN 
ENGINEER’S REPORT 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The City and Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) have an existing intergovernmental 

agreement to complete the College Street Transportation Enhancement Project along N. College 
Street.  ODOT grant funds will pay for the majority of the project.  The City’s expense is estimated at 
$194,197.00. 
 

2. On November 5, 2012, an informational report was presented to City Council for a potential College 
Street Local Improvement District (LID) along the west side of N. College Street from Illinois Street 
to Aldercrest Drive.  The report explains the significance of the existing waivers of remonstrance 
agreements, and provides methodologies for three potential LID scenarios. 
 

3. After review of the report and proposed scenarios, City Council requested several variations of 
Scenario #1 be presented for further consideration in December, 2012.  These variations are shown in 
attached Exhibit “A”, which is hereby attached and by this reference incorporated. 
 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The City Council considers the formation of the College Street Local Improvement District and 
directs staff to prepare an Engineer’s Report.   

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: December 18, 2012. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 17th day of December 2012. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of December 2012. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

Page 78



W/O Grant #1A (100%) #1B (75%) #1C (50%) #1D (25%)
3218 AD 7100 1605 N COLLEGE ST $57,220.79 $14,582.72 $10,937.04 $7,291.36 $3,645.68 $3,000.00 
3218 AD 7000 1605 N COLLEGE ST $10,549.56 $2,688.55 $2,016.42 $1,344.28 $672.14 $500.00 

Willow Pl. ALF 3218 AD 7401 1307 N COLLEGE ST $101,004.97 $25,741.12 $19,305.84 $12,870.56 $6,435.28 $2,000.00 
Jaquith Pk. Est. (43 lots)

Lot 1 3218 AD 7621 606 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 $1,000.00 
Lot 2 3218 AD 7633 604 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 3 3218 AD 7634 600 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 4 3218 AD 7635 510 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 5 3218 AD 7636 508 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 6 3218 AD 7637 504 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 7 3218 AD 7638 500 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 8 3218 AD 7639 412 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 9 3218 AD 7640 410 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 10 3218 AD 7641 408 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 11 3218 AD 7642 404 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 12 3218 AD 7643 400 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 13 3218 AD 7628 1301 BRITTANY DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 14 3218 AD 7627 1307 BRITTANY DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 15 3218 AD 7626 1309 BRITTANY DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 16 3218 AD 7617 1311 BRITTANY DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 17 3218 AD 7616 1315 BRITTANY DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 18 3218 AD 7609 1317 BRITTANY DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 19 3218 AD 7608 1321 BRITTANY DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 20 3218 AD 7607 401 NATHAN DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 21 3218 AD 7606 405 NATHAN DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 22 3218 AD 7605 407 NATHAN DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 23 3218 AD 7604 409 NATHAN DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 24 3218 AD 7603 411 NATHAN DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 25 3218 AD 7602 413 NATHAN DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 26 3218 AD 7601 1320 BROOKE DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 27 3218 AD 7612 1318 BROOKE DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 28 3218 AD 7613 1314 BROOKE DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 29 3218 AD 7620 1310 BROOKE DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 30 3218 AD 7623 500 SARAH DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 31 3218 AD 7622 508 SARAH DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 32 3218 AD 7632 509 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 33 3218 AD 7631 503 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 34 3218 AD 7630 1301 BROOKE DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 35 3218 AD 7629 407 BRANDON DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 36 3218 AD 7625 1308 BRITTANY DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 37 3218 AD 7618 1310 BRITTANY DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 38 3218 AD 7615 1314 BRITTANY DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 39 3218 AD 7610 408 NATHAN DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 40 3218 AD 7611 1317 BROOKE DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 41 3218 AD 7614 1311 BROOKE DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 42 3218 AD 7619 1309 BROOKE DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 
Lot 43 3218 AD 7624 1307 BROOKE DR $1,764.64 $449.72 $337.29 $224.86 $112.43 

Parti. Plat P95-89 (4 tax lots)
(Parcel 3) 3218 DB 2403 724 N MAIN ST $1,359.13 $346.38 $259.78 $173.19 $86.59 
(Parcel 2) 3218 DB 2402 726 N MAIN ST $1,359.13 $346.38 $259.78 $173.19 $86.59 

3218 DB 2600 No Address $8,154.81 $2,078.25 $1,558.69 $1,039.13 $519.56 
3218 DB 2300 735 N COLLEGE ST $16,309.61 $4,156.51 $3,117.38 $2,078.25 $1,039.13 $500.00 

Subtotal from properties with waivers = $271,837.45 $69,277.78 $51,958.33 $34,638.89 $17,319.44 $7,000.00

3218 AD 6900 1701 N COLLEGE ST $23,209.02 $5,914.82 $4,436.12 $2,957.41 $1,478.71 $4,000.00 
3218 AD 7200 1603 N COLLEGE ST $26,060.92 $6,641.63 $4,981.22 $3,320.81 $1,660.41 $1,000.00 
3218 AD 7300 1601 N COLLEGE ST $28,093.47 $7,159.62 $5,369.72 $3,579.81 $1,789.91 
3218 AD 7309 1519 N COLLEGE ST $29,190.62 $7,439.23 $5,579.42 $3,719.62 $1,859.81 
3218 DB 0400 1215 N COLLEGE ST $43,604.83 $11,112.69 $8,334.52 $5,556.35 $2,778.17 
3218 DB 0100 1211 N COLLEGE ST $11,487.30 $2,927.54 $2,195.65 $1,463.77 $731.88 $2,000.00 
3218 DB 0101 No Address $11,487.30 $2,927.54 $2,195.65 $1,463.77 $731.88 
3218 DB 0102 No Address $11,487.30 $2,927.54 $2,195.65 $1,463.77 $731.88 
3218 DB 0200 1119 N COLLEGE ST $14,593.55 $3,719.17 $2,789.38 $1,859.58 $929.79 $4,000.00 
3218 DB 0201 No Address $7,296.78 $1,859.58 $1,394.69 $929.79 $464.90 
3218 DB 0300 1117 N COLLEGE ST $21,890.33 $5,578.75 $4,184.06 $2,789.38 $1,394.69 $4,000.00 
3218 DB 0900 1111 N COLLEGE ST $36,923.45 $9,409.94 $7,057.46 $4,704.97 $2,352.49 $500.00 
3218 DB 0800 501 MISSION DR $50,142.04 $12,778.70 $9,584.03 $6,389.35 $3,194.68 $9,000.00 
3218 DB 2101 1005 N COLLEGE ST $36,923.45 $9,409.94 $7,057.46 $4,704.97 $2,352.49 $2,000.00 
3218 DB 2200 1003 N COLLEGE ST $20,395.81 $5,197.87 $3,898.40 $2,598.94 $1,299.47 $500.00 
3218 DB 2900 729 N COLLEGE ST $4,679.80 $1,192.65 $894.48 $596.32 $298.16 
3218 DB 2901 No Address $1,570.71 $400.30 $300.22 $200.15 $100.07 $500.00 
3218 DB 2800 725 N COLLEGE ST $10,728.48 $2,734.15 $2,050.62 $1,367.08 $683.54 
3218 DB 2700 No Address $6,810.26 $1,735.59 $1,301.70 $867.80 $433.90 
3218 DB 3100 717 N COLLEGE ST $23,789.25 $6,062.69 $4,547.02 $3,031.35 $1,515.67 
3218 DB 3201 711 DESKINS ST $21,626.59 $5,511.54 $4,133.65 $2,755.77 $1,377.88 $7,000.00 
3218 DB 3200 No Address $21,626.59 $5,511.54 $4,133.65 $2,755.77 $1,377.88 
3218 DB 3400 707 DESKINS ST $26,549.72 $6,766.20 $5,074.65 $3,383.10 $1,691.55 $4,000.00 

Subtotal from properties without waivers = $490,167.55 $124,919.22 $93,689.41 $62,459.61 $31,229.80 $38,500.00

TOTAL RECOUPED COSTS = $762,005.00 $194,197.00 $145,647.74 $97,098.50 $48,549.24 $45,500.00

(3 Tax Lots share frontage)

(2 Tax Lots share frontage)

(4 Tax Lots share frontage)

(2 Tax Lots share frontage)

App. R/W or 
Esmt. Cost

EXHIBIT "A": VARIATION OF SCENARIO 1 AT VARIOUS PERCENTAGE LEVELS

Benefitting Property Address Estimated Assessment Costs (Recouped) for Scenario

Open Bible Ch.

Potential College Street LID –
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2012\Res12-3020(2nd submit)_College LID_Exhibit A.xlsx by Paul Chiu       11/26/2012

EXHIBIT "A" TO 
RESOLUTION 2012-3020

Page 79


	NUAMC Committee Appointments
	Planning Commission Appointments
	Traffic Safety Commission Appointments
	Resolution No. 2012-3025 accepting the canvass of votes
	Resolution No. 2012-3027 approving funds for an animal shelter contract Administrator
	RCA to approve City Council meeting minutes for October 1, 2012, November 5, 2012, and November 19, 2012
	Ordinance No. 2012-2757 adopting a new cable franchise with Comcast of Oregon II, Inc.
	Resolution No. 2012-3026 accepting the annual auditor's report for fiscal year 2011-2012
	Resolution No. 2012-3020 considering the formation of the College Street Local Improvement District



